Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey
Chief Operating Officer
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
West Lancashire
L39 2DF

Wednesday, 17 March 2021
TO: COUNCILLORS

D WEST, M NIXON, I ASHCROFT, R COOPER, S EVANS,
M MILLS, G OWEN, A OWENS, A SUTTON, D WESTLEY AND
D WHITTINGTON

Dear Councillor,
A meeting of the EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE will be held by
SKYPE on THURSDAY, 25 MARCH 2021 at 7.00 PM at which your attendance is
requested. A Skype meeting request will be sent to individual Members of Executive
Overview & Scrutiny Committee. The meeting will also be available to view for members
of the public via a webcast on the Council's website.
Yours faithfully

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey
Chief Operating Officer
AGENDA
(Open to the Public)
1.

APOLOGIES

2.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE
To be apprised of any changes to the membership of the Committee in
accordance with Council Procedure Rule 4.

3.

URGENT BUSINESS, IF ANY, INTRODUCED BY THE CHAIRMAN
Note: No other business is permitted unless, by reason of special
circumstances, which shall be specified at the meeting, the Chairman
is of the opinion that the item(s) should be considered as a matter of
urgency.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
If a member requires advice on Declarations of Interest, he/she is
advised to contact the Legal and Democratic Services Manager in
advance of the meeting. (For the assistance of members a checklist
for use in considering their position on any particular item is included at
the end of this agenda sheet.)

5.

DECLARATIONS OF PARTY WHIP
In accordance with Overview and Scrutiny Committee Procedure Rule
16, Members must declare the existence of any Party Whip, and the
nature of it, when considering any matter in the following categories:
-

501 - 502

The review of any decision of the Cabinet or
The performance of any Member of the Cabinet

N.B. The Secretary of State believes whipping is incompatible with
Overview and Scrutiny.
6.

MINUTES
To receive as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 28
January 2021.

503 - 510

7.

PUBLIC SPEAKING
Residents of West Lancashire on giving notice, may address the
meeting to make representations on any item on the agenda except
where the public and press are to be excluded during consideration of
the item. The deadline for submissions is 10.00am on Friday 19 March
2021. A copy of the public speaking protocol and form to be completed
is attached.

511 - 516

8.

CALL IN ITEMS
There are no items under this heading.

9.

RELEVANT MINUTES OF CABINET
To scrutinise the following Minutes of Cabinet:
23 February 2021 (Extraordinary)
9 March 2021

9a

Extraordinary Cabinet - Minutes of the meeting held on 23 February
2021

517 - 520

9b

Cabinet - Minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2021

521 - 528

10.

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORTING 2021/22
To consider the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation and
Resources.

529 - 536

11.

HRA REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING
To consider the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement and
Commercial Services.

537 - 546

12.

ORMSKIRK TOWN CENTRE STRATEGY ACTION PLAN UPDATE
2021-2026 AND THE HERITAGE ACTION ZONE PROGRAMME
To consider the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community.

13.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
It is recommended that members of the press and public be excluded
from the meeting during consideration of the following items of
business in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 (Finance/Business
Affairs) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and as, in all the
circumstances of the case the public interest in maintaining the
exemption under Schedule 12A outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

14.

ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY
That the Portfolio Holder of Resources and Transformation be invited
to the meeting to provide further information and clarification on the
Office Accommodation Strategy and to respond to questions raised by
Members of the Committee.
(Copy of Office Accommodation Strategy attached for information).

547 - 570

571 - 580

We can provide this document, upon request, on audiotape, in large print, in Braille
and in other languages.
MOBILE PHONES: These should be switched off or to ‘silent’ at all meetings.
For further information, please contact:Julia Brown on 01695 585065
Or email julia.brown@westlancs.gov.uk

REMOTE MEETINGS – GUIDANCE
This guidance is designed to assist members when attending remote
meetings.
The guidance should be read in conjunction with the Council's Remote
Meetings Protocol and Procedures Rules
General
1. If members wish to speak on a particular item it will assist the smooth
running of the remote meeting if they indicate to the Chairman their wish
to speak in advance of the meeting.
2. Please join the meeting no later than 15 minutes before the start of the
meeting to ensure that the technology is working correctly.
3. It is a requirement of the remote meetings regulations that any member
participating in a remote meeting must be able to be heard (and if
practicable also be seen) by all other members, officers and public
speakers participating in the meeting and, in turn, be able to hear (and if
practicable see) those persons.
4. It is also a requirement that the meeting be live broadcast and so any
camera (video-feed) should show a non-descript background and
members should take care to ensure that no exempt or confidential
papers can be seen in the video-feed.
5. At the start of the meeting please ensure that your microphone is muted
and your video feed (if available on your device) is paused. Please
remember to unmute your microphone (and unpause your video feed if
available) when invited to speak by the Chairman!
6. At the start of the meeting the Member Services Officer will read out which
Members and Officers are present. The attendance of members will be
recorded.
7. Please remember to mute your mic/pause your video feed when you’re
not talking.

8. Only speak when invited to by the Chair.
9. Please state your name before you make an address.
10. If you’re referring to a specific page or slide mention the page or slide
number.
11. In the event of failure of the live broadcast then the Chairman will
immediately adjourn the meeting until such time as the live broadcast is
restored.
12. In the event that a member's individual remote connection should fail, the
Chairman will call a short adjournment to determine whether the
connection can be re-established (either by video technology or
telephone connection). If connection cannot be restored after a
reasonable period of time then the presumption is that the meeting
should continue, providing the meeting remains quorate.
13. If connection to a member is lost during discussion of an item of business
at a regulatory meeting (planning and licensing committees) that member
will not be able to vote on that item (unless that part of the discussion
during which connection was lost is, in the view of the Chairman, capable
of being repeated for the benefit of the member concerned).
Public speaking
14. Any member of the public participating in a meeting remotely in exercise
of their right to speak must be able to be heard (and if practicable also be
seen) by members, officers and public speakers participating in the same
item of business and, in turn, be able to hear (and if practicable see)
those persons.
15. The Member Services Officer will mute the member of the public once
they have spoken and remove them from the remote meeting on the
instruction of the Chairman once the relevant item of business has been
dealt with. Note: members of the public will be able to view/listen to the
remainder of the meeting via the live broadcast.
Voting
16. Unless a recorded vote is called by a member, the method of voting will
be, at the discretion of the Chairman, by:




General assent by the meeting (where there is no dissent); or
By the Member Services Officer calling out the name of each member
present with members stating "for", "against" or "abstain" to indicate their
vote when their name is called. The Member Services Officer will then
clearly state the result of the vote (to be confirmed by the Chairman)

17. Details of how members voted will not be minuted, unless a recorded
vote is called for prior to the vote taking place.
Declarations of Interest
18. Any member participating in a remote meeting who declares a
disclosable pecuniary interest, or pecuniary interest that would normally
require them to leave the room in which the meeting is taking place must
leave the remote meeting. Their departure will be confirmed by the
Member Services Officer who will invite the relevant member to re-join
the meeting at the appropriate time.
Exclusion of the Press and Public
19. There are times when council meetings are not open to the public when
confidential, or “exempt” items (as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972) are under consideration. The Member Services
Officer will ensure that there are no members of the public in remote
attendance and the live broadcast is ended, once the exclusion has been
agreed by the meeting for that item(s).
20. Every Member in remote attendance must ensure there are no other
persons present in their remote location who are able to hear, see or
record the proceedings (unless those such persons are also entitled to
be so present). Members must declare to the meeting, if at any point
during discussion of the item, this requirement is not met.

Agenda Item 4

MEMBERS INTERESTS 2012
A Member with a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter considered at a meeting must disclose the interest to
the meeting at which they are present, except where it has been entered on the Register.
A Member with a non pecuniary or pecuniary interest in any business of the Council must disclose the existence and
nature of that interest at commencement of consideration or when the interest becomes apparent.
Where sensitive information relating to an interest is not registered in the register, you must indicate that you have an
interest, but need not disclose the sensitive information.

Notes

Please tick relevant boxes

General
1.

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest.



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 below

2.

I have a non-pecuniary interest.



You may speak and vote

3.

I have a pecuniary interest because
it affects my financial position or the financial position of a
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii)
and the interest is one which a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the
public interest



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 or 6 below

or

it relates to the determining of any approval consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to me or a
connected person or, a body described in 10.1(1)(i) and (ii)
and the interest is one which a member of the public with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as
so significant that it is likely to prejudice my judgement of the
public interest
4.

I have a disclosable pecuniary interest (Dispensation
20/09/16) or a pecuniary interest but it relates to the
functions of my Council in respect of:

(i)

Housing where I am a tenant of the Council, and those
functions do not relate particularly to my tenancy or lease.

(ii)

school meals, or school transport and travelling expenses
where I am a parent or guardian of a child in full time
education, or are a parent governor of a school, and it does
not relate particularly to the school which the child attends.



You cannot speak or vote and must
withdraw unless you have also
ticked 5 or 6 below



You may speak and vote



You may speak and vote

(iii)

Statutory sick pay where I am in receipt or entitled to receipt
of such pay.



You may speak and vote

(iv)

An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members



You may speak and vote

(v)

Any ceremonial honour given to Members



You may speak and vote

(vi)

Setting Council tax or a precept under the LGFA 1992



You may speak and vote

5.

A Standards Committee dispensation applies (relevant lines
in the budget – Dispensation 15/09/20 – 14/09/24)



See the terms of the dispensation

6.

I have a pecuniary interest in the business but I can attend
to make representations, answer questions or give evidence
as the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for the
same purpose



You may speak but must leave the
room once you have finished and
cannot vote

‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ (DPI) means an interest of a description specified below which is your
interest, your spouse’s or civil partner’s or the interest of somebody who you are living with as a husband
or wife, or as if you were civil partners and you are aware that that other person has the interest.
Interest
Prescribed description
Employment, office,
Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
trade, profession or
vocation
Sponsorship
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the relevant
authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by M in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election expenses of
M.
Page 501

Contracts

Land
Licences
Corporate tenancies

Securities

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a body in which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest) and the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.
Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the relevant authority.
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the relevant
authority for a month or longer.
Any tenancy where (to M's knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to M's knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the
relevant authority; and
(b) either—
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of
the shares of any one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

“body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner or a body
corporate of which the relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest;
“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society;
“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for the relevant
person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income; “M” means a member of a relevant authority;
“member” includes a co-opted member; “relevant authority” means the authority of which M is a member;
“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M gives notice to the Monitoring Officer of a DPI;
“relevant person” means M or M’s spouse or civil partner, a person with whom M is living as husband or wife or a person with
whom M is living as if they were civil partners;
“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme within the
meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited
with a building society.

‘non pecuniary interest’ means interests falling within the following descriptions:
10.1(1)(i) Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and
to which you are appointed or nominated by your authority;
(ii)
Any body (a) exercising functions of a public nature; (b) directed to charitable purposes; or (c)
one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy
(including any political party or trade union), of which you are a member or in a position of
general control or management;
(iii) Any easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does not carry with it a right
for you (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the land or to receive income.
10.2(2)
A decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting your wellbeing or financial position or the well-being or financial position of a connected person to a
greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the
ward, as the case may be, affected by the decision.
‘a connected person’ means
(a) a member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association, or
(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a
partner, or any company of which they are directors;
(c)
any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or
(d) any body of a type described in sub-paragraph 10.1(1)(i) or (ii).
‘body exercising functions of a public nature’ means
Regional and local development agencies, other government agencies, other Councils, public health
bodies, council-owned companies exercising public functions, arms length management organisations
carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, school governing bodies.
A Member with a personal interest who has made an executive decision in relation to that matter must
ensure any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of that interest.
NB Section 21(13) of the LGA 2000 overrides any Code provisions to oblige an executive member to
attend an overview and scrutiny meeting to answer questions.

Page 502

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

Agenda Item 6

HELD:

Thursday, 28 January 2021

Start:
Finish:

7.00 pm
8.45 pm

PRESENT:
Councillor:

D West (Chairman)

Councillors:

M Nixon (Vice-Chair)
R Cooper
M Mills
A Owens
D Westley

Officers:

Heidi McDougall, Corporate Director of Place & Community
Ian Gill, Head of Growth and Development Services
Mike Kostrzewski, Finance and Audit Manager
Tom Dickinson, Principal Solicitor
Alison Patterson, Our Future Project Manager
Peter Richards, Strategic Planning, Regeneration &
Implementation Manager
Rebecca Spicer, Insurance and Risk Officer
Jacky Denning, Democratic Services Manager
Julia Brown, Member Services Officer
Chloe McNally, Member Services Apprentice

41

I Ashcroft
S Evans
G Owen
A Sutton
D Whittington

APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence received.

42

MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE
There were no changes to Membership of the Committee.

43

URGENT BUSINESS, IF ANY, INTRODUCED BY THE CHAIRMAN
There were no items of urgent business.

44

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

45

DECLARATIONS OF PARTY WHIP
There were no declarations of Party Whip.

46

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 November 2020 be
received as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

Page 503

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
47

HELD:

Thursday, 28 January 2021

PUBLIC SPEAKING
There were no items under this heading.

48

CALL IN ITEMS
There were no items under this heading.

49

RELEVANT MINUTES OF CABINET - 12 JANUARY 2021
Consideration was given to the Minutes of Cabinet held on 12 January 2021 as
contained on pages 311 to 318 of the Book of Reports.
A comment was raised in respect of Minute 61 – Liverpool City Region Spatial
Development Strategy – Second Round of Consultation, in relation to areas of the
Borough not being considered in the consultation.
A question was raised in respect of Minute 66 – Quarterly Performance Indicators
(Q2 2020/21), in respect of the current recycling target and if this target had been
achieved in the last 12 months.
The Corporate Director of Place and Community advised that this information would
be circulated to Members following the meeting.
A comment was raised in respect of Minute 56 – Confirmation of Procedural matters:
Flooding and Drainage Cabinet Working Group Terms of Reference, in respect of
(D) To give consideration to all the issues and options associated with the
establishment of an internal drainage board. It was expressed that reference to
'River Authority' had not been included as per the recommendation of the Working
Group.
RESOLVED:
A. That the Minutes of Cabinet held on 12 January 2021 and comments raised in
respect of Minute 56 and 61 be noted.
B. That information relating to the current recycling target and if this target had
been achieved in the last 12 months be circulated to Members of the
Committee

50

MEMBER DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION - MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD
17 NOVEMBER 2020
Consideration was given to the Minutes of the Member Development Commission
held on 17 November 2020, as contained on pages 319 to 322 of the Book of
Reports.
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the Member Development Commission held on 17
November 2020 be noted.

Page 504

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

51

HELD:

Thursday, 28 January 2021

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY FUNCTION REVIEW
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation
and Resources as contained on pages 323 to 362 of the Book of Reports, which
was to consider the recommendations of the Member Development Commission
following a review of the Overview & Scrutiny function at West Lancashire.
The Democratic Services Manager outlined the report and explained that a
questionnaire had been sent to all Members. She explained that there had been 29
responses to the questionnaire (as detailed at Appendix A of the report).
She explained that from the analysis of the responses, the common themes included
training, pre-scrutiny, questions in advance of meetings, Portfolio Holder attendance
at meetings, Scoring of Topics, Member Update items and the consideration of the
future number of Scrutiny Committees.
The Democratic Services Manager responded to questions raised by Members in
relation to the scrutiny processes and themes contained within the report.
The following Motion was moved and seconded:
RESOLVED:
A.

That an in-house 'Overview & Scrutiny at West Lancashire' training session
be held each year following a local election with a further session on 'Best
Practice Scrutiny' being arranged with an external trainer in the year that
there are no local elections, as detailed in paragraph 6 of the report.

B.

That Council be recommended to amend the timetable of meetings for
2021/22 to allow for Executive Overview & Scrutiny Committee to be held
prior to Cabinet, to accommodate pre-scrutiny, with a Special 'Call In' Meeting
of Executive Overview & Scrutiny Committee being scheduled following
Cabinet, to meet as and when required, as detailed in paragraph 7 of the
report.

C.

That Members of Overview & Scrutiny Committees be asked to submit
questions in advance of meetings.

D.

That Council be recommended to amend 'The Overview & Scrutiny Procedure
Rules at Constitution 14' to read:
"Attendance by others
(a)

E.

The leaders of the political groups on the Council shall be allowed to
attend each Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to speak but not
vote on any issue under consideration."

That it be recommended:
Page 505

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

HELD:

Thursday, 28 January 2021

That no change be made to Constitution 9.2: Members’ Update Procedure
Rules and the form for submitting Members Update Items, attached at
Appendix 2 to the report, and information items continue to be reported via
the Corporate & Environmental Overview & Scrutiny Members Update.
F

52

That no change be made to the current number of Overview & Scrutiny
Committees at West Lancashire i.e. retain Executive Overview & Scrutiny
Committee and Corporate & Environmental Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK & CORPORATE RISK REGISTER
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement and
Commercial Property as contained on pages 363 to 434 of the Book of Reports,
which proposed changes to the Risk Management Framework and to set out details
of the Corporate Risks facing the Council and how they are being managed.
The Risk and Insurance Officer outlined details contained within the report and
appendices and responded to a comment raised by a Member, in respect of the
Council Risk Appetite rating of 'zero tolerance' for risk being taken with regard to
Health & Safety.
The Risk and Insurance Officer explained that a Risk Appetite survey was sent to
Members and Heads of Service, the results of which were challenged during a
workshop with an external body using a benchmark from other councils. It was
explained that the risk appetite will be reviewed annually and if the appetite changes
over the 12 month period, the document will be updated accordingly and presented
to Committee for approval.
RESOLVED:
A
That the revised Risk Management Policy including a new Risk
Appetite Statement and Corporate Risk Matrix (Appendix A) and Risk
Management Toolkit (Appendix B) be considered and noted prior to
submission for approval by Cabinet.
B.

53

That the progress made in relation to the management of the risks
shown in the Corporate Risk Register (Appendix C) be noted.

ORMSKIRK EASTERN GATEWAY PROPOSALS.
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community as contained on pages 435 to 448 of the Book of Reports, which
presented the plans prepared for the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway in partnership with
Lancashire County Council, and to seek the Committees comments on the
proposals for feedback to Cabinet alongside the public consultation.
The Strategic Planning, Regeneration & Implementation Manager outlined the report
and presented plans detailed at (Appendix A). He gave an overview of the four
Page 506

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

HELD:

Thursday, 28 January 2021

different phases of the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway.
He also provided a
demonstration of the on line Consultation on the Council website.
Questions and comments were raised in respect of: Improve cycling and waling links to Edge Hill University
 Create a visually appealing Town Centre
 Engagement with bus users with no digital means
 Posters displayed in Bus Station / call or write to team to engage in
consultation
 WLBC Social media/ Champ website
 Rest room at Bus Station
RESOLVED: That Executive Overview & Scrutiny Committee fully support the
proposals to Cabinet and encourage the public to take part in the
Council's Consultation and also thank Lancashire County Council for
their participation and partnership in the Ormskirk Eastern Gateway
Scheme.
54

DRAFT REVENUE BUDGET 2021- 22
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement and
Commercial Property as contained on pages 449 to 456 of the Book of Reports,
which provided a summary of the General Revenue Account budget position for the
next financial year, 2021/22. The report had previously been considered by Cabinet
on 12 January 2021.
The Finance and Audit Manager provided an overview of the report referring to
details set down in the report.
A question was raised in respect of prioritising projects that had been delayed during
2020/21 due to the Covid Pandemic. The Finance and Audit Manager informed
Members that the Head of Housing and Regulatory Services, Fiona Graham, had at
the previous Executive Overview & Scrutiny Committee been asked the same
question and she had provided assurances that this would be the case.
RESOLVED: That the budget position be noted.

55

DRAFT MEDIUM TERM CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement and
Commercial Property as contained on pages 457 to 464 of the Book of Reports,
which set out details of the GRA medium term capital programme position for the
next 3 years. The report had previously been considered by Cabinet on 12 January
2021.
The Finance and Audit Manager provided an overview of the report referring to
details set down in the report.

Page 507

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

HELD:

Thursday, 28 January 2021

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.
56

HOUSING ACCOUNT - REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGET SETTING
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement and
Commercial Property as contained on pages 465 to 480 of the Book of Reports,
which provided a summary of the Housing Account's financial position. The report
had previously been considered by Cabinet on 12 January 2021.
The Finance and Audit Manager provided an overview of the report referring to
details set down in the report and appendices.
RESOLVED: That the budget position be noted.

57

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of
the following item of business on the grounds that they involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3
(financial/business affairs) of Part 1 Schedule 12A of that Act and as,
in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining
the exemption under Schedule 12A outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.

58

ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation
and Resources as contained on pages 481 to 500 of the Book of Reports, which
outlined the proposals set out in the Accommodation Strategy report attached as an
Appendix, as one of the outcomes of the Sustainable Organisation Review report
agreed by Council in July 2019.
The Our Future Programme Manager provided an overview of the report referring to
details set out in the report and appendices.
Comments and questions were raised by Members.
In discussion, the Committee felt that further information and clarification on the
Office Accommodation Strategy report be provided by the Portfolio Holder of
Resources and Transformation.
A vote was taken, the outcome of which was unanimous, and it was agreed that
Executive Overview & Scrutiny Committee propose the deferral of the Office
Accommodation Strategy and invite the Portfolio Holder of Resources and
Transformation to the next meeting in order to provide further information and
clarification on the Office Accommodation Strategy and to respond to questions
raised by Members.

Page 508

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

HELD:

Thursday, 28 January 2021

RESOLVED: That the agreed comments of Executive Overview & Scrutiny
Committee are to propose the deferral of the Office Accommodation
Strategy and that the Portfolio Holder of Resources and
Transformation be invited to the next meeting in order to provide
further information and clarification on the Office Accommodation
Strategy and to respond to questions raised by Members.

……….………………………..
Chairman

Page 509

Agenda Item 7
PUBLIC SPEAKING – PROTOCOL
(For meetings of Cabinet, Overview & Scrutiny Committees, Audit &
Governance Committee and Standards Committee)
1.0

Public Speaking

1.1

Residents of West Lancashire may, on giving notice, address any of the
above meetings to make representations on any item on the agenda for those
meetings, except where the public and press are to be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the item.

1.2

A Parish Council Representative may, on giving notice, address any of the
above meetings to make representations on any item on the agenda for those
meetings, except where the public and press are to be excluded from the
meeting during consideration of the item.

1.3

The form attached as an Appendix to this Protocol should be used for
submitting requests.

2.0

Deadline for submission

2.1

The prescribed form should be received by Member Services by 10.00 am on
the Friday of the week preceding the meeting. This can be submitted by email to member.services@westlancs.gov.uk or by sending to:
Member Services
West Lancashire Borough Council
52 Derby Street
Ormskirk
West Lancashire
L39 2DF

2.2

Completed forms will be collated by Member Services and circulated via email to relevant Members and officers and published on the Council website
via Modgov. Only the name of the speaker (and representative) and details of
the issue to be raised will be published.

2.3

Groups of persons with similar views should elect a spokesperson to speak
on their behalf to avoid undue repetition of similar points. Spokespersons
should identify in writing on whose behalf they are speaking.

3.0

Scope

3.1

Any matters raised must be relevant to an item on the agenda for the meeting.

3.2

The Legal & Democratic Services Manager may reject a submission if it:
(i)
is defamatory, frivolous or offensive;
(ii)
is substantially the same as representations which have already been
submitted at a previous meeting; or

Page 511

(iii)

discloses or requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt
information.

4.0

Number of items

4.1

A maximum of one form per resident will be accepted for each Agenda Item.

4.2

There will be a maximum of 10 speakers per meeting. Where there are more
than 10 forms submitted by residents, the Legal & Democratic Services
Manager will prioritise the list of those allowed to speak. This will be
considered having regard to all relevant matters including:
a. The order in which forms were received.
b. If one resident has asked to speak on a number of items, priority will be
given to other residents who also wish to speak
c. Whether a request has been submitted in relation to the same issue.
No amendments will be made to the list of speakers once it has been
compiled (regardless of withdrawal of a request to speak).

4.3

All submissions received will be published on the Council's website and
circulated to Members of the relevant body and officers for consideration.

5.0

At the Meeting

5.1

Speakers will be shown to their seats.
At the commencement of
consideration of each agenda item the Leader/Chairman will invite the
speakers to make their representations. Speakers will have up to 3 minutes
to address the meeting. The address must reflect the issue included on the
prescribed form submitted in advance.

5.2

Members may discuss what the speaker/s have said, along with any other
information/representations submitted under this protocol, when all speakers
on that item have finished and will then make a decision. Speakers should
not circulate any supporting documentation at the meeting and should not
enter into a debate with Councillors.

5.4

If residents feel nervous or uncomfortable speaking in public, then they can
ask someone else to do it for them, including a Parish or Borough Councillor
representative. They can also bring an interpreter if they need one. They
should be aware there may be others speaking as well.
(Note: If a Resident wishes to have their Borough Councillor speak on their
behalf, the Borough Councillor is not a member of the body considering the
item.)

Page 512

5.5

Speakers may leave the meeting at any time, taking care not to disturb the
meeting.

(Please see attached form.)

Page 513

REQUEST FOR PUBLIC SPEAKING AT MEETINGS

MEETING & DATE …………………………………………………………………
NAME

………………………………………………………………………….

ADDRESS

………………………………………………………………………….
………………………………………………………………………….
Post Code ………………………………………….

PHONE

………………………………………………………

Email

………………………………………………………

Please indicate if you will be in attendance at the
meeting

Please indicate if someone will be speaking on your behalf
at the meeting

YES/NO*
*delete as applicable

YES/NO*
*delete as applicable

If someone is speaking on your behalf please provide their contact details:
NAME

………………………………………………………………………….

PHONE

………………………………………………………

Email

………………………………………………………

Note: This page will not be published.
(P.T.O.)

Page 515

PLEASE PROVIDE DETAILS OF THE MATTER YOU WISH TO RAISE
Agenda Item

Number ………………….
Title ……………………………………………………..

Details

…………………………………………………………….

…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………………………….
Name …………………………………

Dated ………………………

Completed forms to be submitted by 10.00am on the Friday of the week
preceding the meeting to:Member Services, West Lancashire Borough Council, 52 Derby Street,
Ormskirk, Lancashire, L39 2DF or
Email: member.services@westlancs.gov.uk
If you require any assistance regarding your attendance at a meeting
(including access) or if you have any queries regarding your submission
please contact Member Services on 01695 585065
Note: This page will be circulated to Members of the Committee and published.

Page 516

Agenda Item 9a

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 23 February 2021

Start:
Finish:

7.00 p.m.
7.11 p.m.

PRESENT:

Councillors:

Portfolio
Councillor Ian Moran
Councillor Yvonne Gagen

Councillor Vickie Cummins
Councillor Gareth Dowling
Councillor David Evans
Councillor Jenny Wilkie
Councillor Kevin Wilkie
Councillor Kevin Wright

Councillor Adam Yates

In attendance:
Councillors

Officers:

71

Leader of the Council and Portfolio
Holder for Economic Regeneration
Deputy Leader of the Council and
Portfolio Holder for Leisure &
Human Resources
Portfolio Holder for Health and
Wellbeing
Portfolio Holder for Communities
and Community Safety
Portfolio Holder for Planning
Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Landlord Services
Portfolio Holder for Street Scene
Portfolio Holder for Emergency
Planning, Preparation and
Implementation
Portfolio Holder for Resources &
Transformation

Councillors: Paul O'Neill, Adrian Owens, Anne Sutton, David
Westley and David Whittington
Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey, Chief Operating Officer
Chris Twomey, Corporate Director of Transformation & Resources
Heidi McDougall, Corporate Director of Place & Community
Simon Burnet, Head of Wellbeing and Leisure
James Pierce, Head of Finance, Procurement & Commercial
Services
Ian Gill, Head of Growth and Development
Matt Jones, Legal and Democratic Services Manager
Rachel Kneale, Estates and Valuation Manager
Jill Ryan, Senior Member Services Officer
Chloe McNally, Member Services Apprentice

APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence.

Page 517

CABINET

72

HELD:

Tuesday, 23 February 2021

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
The following declaration of interest was received.
Councillor Gagen declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda items relating to
Lancashire County Council (LCC) as an employee of Lancashire County Council
and did not enter into detailed discussions, which affected LCC.

73

PUBLIC SPEAKING
There were no items under this heading.

74

SPECIAL URGENCY (RULE 16 ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE
RULES)/URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of special urgency.

75

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 12 January 2021
were received as a correct record and signed by the Leader.

76

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED:

That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration
of the following item of business on the grounds that they involve the
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3
(financial/business affairs) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of that Act and
as, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in
maintaining the exemption under Schedule 12A outweighs the public
interest in disclosing the information.

(Note: No representations had been received in relation to the following item being
considered in private)
77

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS
Consideration was given to report relating to the following matters requiring
decisions and contained on pages 945 – 964 of the Book of Reports.

78

PURCHASE OF LAND AT FAIRLIE, SKELMERSDALE
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community, which sought authority to purchase land at Fairlie, Skelmersdale.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
Page 518

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 23 February 2021

report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

79

That subject to Council approving paragraph 3.1 of the report,
acquisition of the land at Fairlie, Skelmersdale for £350,000,
hatched on the plan attached to the report (Appendix A), on behalf
of the HRA be agreed and authority be given to the Corporate
Director of Place and Community to enter into all necessary
arrangements with regard to the proposed purchase from
Lancashire County Council.

LEISURE CONTRACT EXTENSION 2021 / 22 FINAL PROPOSAL
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community, which provided Cabinet with details of the proposed 2021/2022 Leisure
Contract extension between WLBC, West Lancashire Community Leisure Trust
(WLCLT) and Serco and to seek agreement to proceed with the extension.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED A.

That Cabinet agree to the financial proposal detailed in Section
6.7 of the report.

B.

That the Corporate Director of Place and Community, in
conjunction with the Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Human
Resources, be authorised to take all necessary actions
required to enter into the contract extension.

……….………………………..
Leader

Page 519

Agenda Item 9b

CABINET

HELD:
Start:
Finish:

Tuesday, 9 March 2021
7.00 pm
7.12 pm

PRESENT:
Councillors:

Portfolio
Councillor Ian Moran
Councillor Yvonne Gagen

Councillor Vickie Cummins
Councillor Gareth Dowling
Councillor David Evans
Councillor Jenny Wilkie
Councillor Kevin Wilkie
Councillor Kevin Wright

Councillor Adam Yates

Leader of the Council and Portfolio
Holder for Economic Regeneration
Deputy Leader of the Council and
Portfolio Holder for Leisure &
Human Resources
Portfolio Holder for Health and
Wellbeing
Portfolio Holder for Communities
and Community Safety
Portfolio Holder for Planning
Portfolio Holder for Housing and
Landlord Services
Portfolio Holder for Street Scene
Portfolio Holder for Emergency
Planning, Preparation and
Implementation
Portfolio Holder for Resources &
Transformation

In attendance:

Other Councillors viewed the meeting via the public webcast

Officers:

Jacqui Sinnott-Lacey, Chief Operating Officer
Chris Twomey, Corporate Director of Transformation & Resources
Fiona Graham, Head of Housing and Regulatory Services
Lisa Windle, Head of Corporate and Customer Services
James Pierce, Head of Finance, Procurement and Commercial
Services
Matt Jones, Legal & Democratic Services Manager
Peter Richards, Strategic Planning, Regeneration &
Implementation Manager
Rebecca Spicer, Insurance and Risk Officer
Jacky Denning, Democratic Services Manager
Helen Peek, Member Services Officer
Kay Lovelady, Principal Solicitor

80

APOLOGIES
There were no apologies for absence.

Page 521

CABINET

81

HELD:

Tuesday, 9 March 2021

SPECIAL URGENCY (RULE 16 ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE
RULES)/URGENT BUSINESS
There were no items of special urgency.

82

PUBLIC SPEAKING
There were no items under this heading.

83

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
The following declarations of interest were received:
1. Councillor Gagen declared a non-pecuniary interest in agenda items relating
to Lancashire County Council (LCC) as an employee of Lancashire County
Council and did not enter into detailed discussions, which affected LCC.
2. Councillor J Wilkie (tenant of Council accommodation) and Councillors K
Wilkie and K Wright (connected person who is a tenant of Council
accommodation) declared disclosable pecuniary interests in agenda item
6(d) 'HRA Revenue and Capital Monitoring' but considered they were
entitled to speak and vote by virtue of an exemption as nothing in the report
relates particularly to the relevant tenancy or lease

84

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Cabinet (Extraordinary) meeting held on 23 rd
February 2021 be received as a correct record and signed by the
Leader.

85

MATTERS REQUIRING DECISIONS
Consideration was given to reports relating to the following matters requiring
decisions and contained on pages 977 to 1228 of the Book of Reports:

86

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (Q3 2020/21)
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Transformation
and Resources, presenting performance monitoring data for the quarter ended 31
December 2020.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it, and the reasons contained therein.
Thanks to staff were expressed, in relation to their efforts, working under very
different circumstances due to COVID restrictions and working processes,
implemented due to the pandemic.

Page 522

CABINET

RESOLVED

HELD:

Tuesday, 9 March 2021

A. That the Council’s performance against the indicator set for the
quarter ended 31 December 2020 be noted.
B. That the call-in procedure is not appropriate for this item as the
report will be submitted to the meeting of the Corporate &
Environmental Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 11 March
2021.

87

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORTING
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Corporate Director
of Transformation and Resources, seeking approval for the Corporate Performance
Reporting plan for 2021/22.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That the suite of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and
targets in Appendix A are approved and adopted for reporting
alongside an associated Council Plan Corporate Delivery Plan
to evidence progress with the Council Plan.

B. That the Corporate Director of Transformation and Resources,
in consultation with the Leader of the Council as Portfolio
Holder, be authorised to finalise and amend the suite
(Appendix A) having regard to agreed comments from
Executive Overview and Scrutiny Committee made on 25
March 2021, and to make necessary amendments to the suite
in year in response to any issues that may arise, for example
government policy or collection mechanisms.
C. That the call-in procedure is not appropriate for this item as the
report will be submitted to the meeting of the Executive
Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 25 March 2021.
88

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK & CORPORATE RISK REGISTER
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement &
Commercial Property, which proposed changes to the Risk Management Framework
and set out details of the Corporate Risks facing the Council and how they are being
managed.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That the revised Risk Management Policy including a new Risk
Appetite Statement and Corporate Risk Matrix (Appendix A)
Page 523

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 9 March 2021

and Risk Management Toolkit (Appendix B) be approved.
B. That the progress made in relation to the management of the
risks shown in the Corporate Risk Register (Appendix C) be
noted and approved.

89

HRA REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement and
Commercial Services, providing a summary of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
and Housing capital programme positions for the 2020/21 financial year.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That the 2020/21 HRA and Housing capital programme
positions be noted.

B. That call in is not appropriate for this item as the report is being
submitted to the next meeting of the Executive Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on 25 March 2021.
90

A REGENERATION PLAN FOR SKELMERSDALE TOWN CENTRE
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community, providing an update on the development of a 'Place Shaping' Hub and
the preparation of a specific Regeneration Plan for Skelmersdale Town Centre, and
to establish a 'Place Shaping Hub' and Cabinet Working Group to steer this work.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That a Place-Shaping Hub made up of the partners outlined in
paragraph 3.5 of the report be established.

B. That the Terms of Reference of the Place Shaping Hub be
agreed as follows:
"To create and develop a Regeneration Plan for Skelmersdale
Town Centre, that meets the aspirations and key priorities for
the Council and its partners, initially concentrating on the area
outlined at Appendix A and consider other specific, but
connected, pieces or work around other key regeneration
projects in the wider Skelmersdale and Up Holland area,
including Estates Regeneration and Green Infrastructure
proposals, including consideration of available funding."
C. That a Skelmersdale Town Centre Regeneration Plan Cabinet
Page 524

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 9 March 2021

Working Group be established consisting of 4 Labour
Members, 2 Conservative Members and 1 Our West
Lancashire Member, with a Chairman and Vice-Chairman to be
nominated by the Leader of the Council with the following
Terms of Reference:
"(a) To receive presentations and reports in relation to the
progress of the Skelmersdale Town Centre Regeneration
Plan.

91

(b)

To consider proposals arising from the Skelmersdale
Town Centre Regeneration Plan.

(c)

To make recommendations to Cabinet and/or Council as
appropriate."

LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME UPDATE
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community, providing an updated Local Development Scheme setting out the
revised timetable for the preparation of a new Local Plan for West Lancashire, in the
light of delays caused by the COVID-19 pandemic.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That the updated March 2021 Local Development Scheme
within Appendix 1 be approved.

B. That the new Local Plan is prepared on the basis of a Plan
period of 2023-2040.

92

ORMSKIRK EASTERN GATEWAY CONSULTATION FEEDBACK
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community, reporting the views of the Executive Overview and Scrutiny Committee
and the outcome of the public consultation exercise on the Ormskirk Eastern
Gateway project and to request conditional approval to enter into a Collaboration
Agreement with Lancashire County Council to procure the works.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That the agreed comments of the Executive Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (Appendix 5) be noted.

B. That the feedback from the public consultation exercise
Page 525

CABINET

HELD:

Tuesday, 9 March 2021

(Appendices 1 and 2) be noted.
C. That, subject to securing funding from Lancashire County
Council's Economic Recovery and Growth Fund and minor
adjustments to the proposed works based on the feedback
from the public consultation, delegated authority be given to
the Corporate Director Place and Community, in consultation
with the Portfolio Holders for Planning and Economic
Regeneration, to negotiate and enter into a Collaboration
Agreement with Lancashire County Council to undertake the
works, as set out section 4 of the report, on a collaborative
basis and to negotiate and enter into all other agreements as
necessary for the scheme to proceed.
D. That should the funding from the Lancashire County Council's
Economic Recovery and Growth Fund not be secured,
delegated authority be given to the Corporate Director Place
and Community, in consultation with the Portfolio Holders for
Planning and Economic Regeneration, to agree suitable
changes to the scheme to meet the budget available and to
enter into all appropriate agreements as necessary for the
revised scheme to proceed.
E. That concerns regarding the manoeuvrability of buses and
coaches entering, exiting and travelling through the bus station
be raised with Lancashire County Council for consideration as
they finalise the detailed plans for the Ormskirk Eastern
Gateway works.
93

ORMSKIRK TOWN CENTRE STRATEGY ACTION PLAN UPDATE 2021-2026
AND THE HERITAGE ACTION ZONE PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community, to outline and inform members regarding the details of the Action Plan
for 2021 - 2026 in relation to Ormskirk Town Centre and to update Cabinet on the
progress of the Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) project and how this project will assist
with the recovery and regeneration efforts for the town centre.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That the Ormskirk Town Centre Strategy Action Plan 20212026 be approved.

B. That the ongoing work on regeneration plans for Ormskirk Town
Centre as proposed in the Heritage Action Zone (HAZ), that is
included within the Town Centre Strategy Action Plan, be
noted.
Page 526

CABINET

94

HELD:

Tuesday, 9 March 2021

USE OF SECTION 106 FUNDS ON BUS STOP IMPROVEMENTS, DIGMOOR
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community which sought authorisation to spend Section 106 funds on bus stop
improvement works in Digmoor.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

95

That the use of £10,000 of S106 monies from planning permission
2012/0456/FUL (Digmoor Business Site, Digmoor) to provide bus
stop improvement works as outlined in the report, be approved.

RIPA ACT REGULAR MONITORING OF USE OF POWERS – ANNUAL SETTING
OF THE POLICY
Consideration was given to the report of the Legal and Democratic Services
Manager, regarding the Council's use of its powers under the Regulation of
Investigatory Power's Act (RIPA) and to present the RIPA Policy document.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

That the Council's RIPA activity and the RIPA Policy at Appendix 1,
be noted

……….………………………..
Leader

Page 527

Agenda Item 10
AGENDA ITEM:
CABINET: 9 MARCH 2021
EXECUTIVE
OVERVIEW
COMMITTEE:
25 MARCH 2021
Report of:

&

SCRUTINY

Corporate Director of Transformation and Resources

Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor I Moran
Contact for further information: Ms A Grimes (Extn. 3211)
(E-mail: alison.grimes@westlancs.gov.uk)
SUBJECT: CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORTING 2021/22
Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To seek approval for the Corporate Performance Reporting plan for 2021/22.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

2.1

That the suite of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and targets in Appendix A
are approved and adopted for reporting alongside an associated Council Plan
Corporate Delivery Plan to evidence progress with the Council Plan.

2.2

That the Corporate Director of Transformation and Resources, in consultation
with the Leader of the Council as Portfolio Holder, be authorised to finalise and
amend the suite (Appendix A) having regard to agreed comments from Executive
Overview and Scrutiny Committee made on 25 March 2021, and to make
necessary amendments to the suite in year in response to any issues that may
arise, for example government policy or collection mechanisms.

2.3

That the call-in procedure is not appropriate for this item as the report will be
submitted to the meeting of the Executive Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 25
March 2021.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS
COMMITTEE

3.1

That the Committee consider the suite of Key Performance Indicators 2021/22
(Appendix A) and agree comments as appropriate

TO

EXECUTIVE

1

Page 529

OVERVIEW

&

SCRUTINY

4.0

CURRENT POSITION

4.1

The new Council Plan was agreed at Council in October 2020 detailing the Vision
and Priorities for the organisation for 2021/2023. The Plan provides clarity of
purpose for the Council allowing efficient communication of its strategic direction
with the public, stakeholders and staff. This in turn allows effective planning and
prioritisation of work and supports transparency and accountability.

4.2

Services have now developed and timetabled the actions (the "We Will.."
statements) to meet those priorities over the three years of the Council Plan. This
covers a large amount of work over several years across a broad spectrum of
services. Progress against these actions will be summarised and reported to
Members along with the supporting KPIs on a quarterly basis as a Corporate
Performance Delivery Plan.

4.3

A revised suite of indicators to better reflect the strategic priorities and associated
actions (Appendix A) has been developed. The intention is that KPIs reviewed by
Members will now have a much stronger relevance to the Vision and Priorities of
the Council and less focus on elements of service outputs, reflecting Members
role in the implementation of the Council Plan. Service information will however
still be used and actively monitored by Managers and Heads of Service to ensure
effective operational delivery.

4.4

There are some gaps in KPIs when aligned against the full detail of the Council
Plan however the reporting is aimed at the first year. As the Plan progresses
development of further KPIs will be progressed as appropriate for monitoring
delivery in subsequent years.

4.5

Targets for the KPIs in Appendix A have been set after consideration by services
to be challenging but realistic based on current expectations and Cabinet is
asked to agree these targets for the coming year. An important factor for
performance for the coming year in many service areas will however be the
ongoing impacts of the COVID pandemic. Current year performance in the
majority of cases will have been affected by this and impact will continue for an
uncertain period of time into 2021/22. In addition to KPIs, information of 'data
only' is provided where targets have not been set, with explanations provided in
the Appendix. It should be noted that not all KPIs will have a quarterly outturn.

4.6

Previously an annual suite of PIs has had targets agreed by Cabinet as a
separate exercise to changes to the Council Plan. It is proposed that in future
any refresh/development of the Council Plan or review of KPIs / targets will be
done together so that they are not considered in isolation.

4.7

Explanations of underperformance and activity to address this within actions or
KPIs will be provided within the report.

2

Page 530

5.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACTS

5.1

The information set out in this report aims to help the Council achieve its
priorities and vision and should contribute to the sustainability of services and the
borough as a whole. There are no significant sustainability impacts associated
with this report/update and, in particular, no significant impact on crime and
disorder.

6.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

6.1

The Council Plan aims to ensure the Council is able to continue to pursue its
objectives, within the resources available and can monitor and manage use of
those resources. An agreed Council Plan will assist in shaping budget decisions
and enable clear priorities to be set for services. There are no direct financial or
resource implications arising from this report.

7.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

7.1

The actions referred to in this report are covered by the scheme of delegation to
officers and any necessary changes have been made in the relevant risk
registers. Having well-defined priorities means that attention and resources can
be effectively focussed on managing, monitoring and achieving the Council's
core objectives and reduces the risk of not doing so. Monitoring and managing
the priorities, actions and KPIs is therefore an essential part of delivering the
plan.

8.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

8.1

The Council Plan supports health and wellbeing within West Lancashire in a
variety of ways. The priority Everyone to be healthy, happy, safe and
resilient specifically outlines what we want and what we intend to do to achieve
this. In addition, a positive impact on Health & Wellbeing will also be achieved
through the wider work of the other priorities and actions of the plan.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.
Equality Impact Assessment
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees,
elected members and / or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is
required.
Appendices
Appendix A: Proposed KPIs 2021/22
3

Page 531

APPENDIX A - PROPOSED KPI SUITE 2021/22
Frequency

Want

Target
2020/21

Outturn
2019/20

Proposed
target
2021/22

88%
145

85.90%
121

88%
145

+5% /Q

9,567

Data only

How effective is the website for providing information?

Data only

648,500

Data only

To what extent do customers take advantage of digital services?

Data only

64,990

Data only

.

N/A

51%

Data only

Data only since reliant on perception of services from varying
response group and not a measure of service performance.

Measure

Why is this measured?

Priority: Create empowered, engaged and inclusive communities
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q

To improve customer satisfaction
WL90 % calls answered
To improve customer satisfaction
WL108 Average time to answer calls
Our citizens to access the benefits of being digitally WL131 No. Social Media Followers (WLBC FB,
engaged
Twitter)
Our citizens to access the benefits of being digitally
WL85a Website: no. visits
engaged
Our citizens to access the benefits of being digitally
WL85c No payments processed online
engaged

How efficient is the access channel?
How efficient is the access channel?
How effective is our social media offer for providing information to
citizens?

Demonstrates understanding/awareness of council activity and
how it is carried out. How well do we promote a positive image /
celebrate the good work of the Council?

A

To improve customer satisfaction

A

Healthy resilient and engaged communities that
Demonstrate sense of community
CIT16 % residents who feel that they belong to their
work together to improve the places they live and
To what extent are people 'satisfied/content/fulfilled' whilst being
local area
work
residents in West Lancs?

CIT03 Satisfied with how WLBC runs things

N/A

65%

Comment

Service

CCS
CCS
CCS
CCS

Data only

CCS

CCS

As above
CCS

Priority: Support business to adapt and prosper
Q

Page 532

To support our businesses to succeed and grow

BV8: % invoices paid on time

Q

To support our businesses to succeed and grow

NEW: Value of business support grants allocated
and processed

A

West Lancashire to be the place of choice to locate
your business

ER07 No. businesses signed up to Skelmersdale
Ambassadors

A

Our 3 towns to be thriving hubs for their
communities

A
A
Q

Our 3 towns to be thriving hubs for their
communities
Our 3 towns to be thriving hubs for their
communities
To support our businesses to succeed and grow

NEW: Vacancy levels - Vacant units in Burscough

To what extent do we support business? Prompt payments to
businesses - good customer.
To what extent do we support business?
Promote a local business community to create support for local
area. How successful are we at facilitating a WL businesses
'community'? To what extent to do we promote West Lancs as a
place of choice to businesses?
Vibrancy of retail hubs
Do we understand how appealing the town centres are for
businesses?

98.75%

98.34%

N/A

N/A

Data only 34 to October

Target unchanged since target not achieved since Q1 19/20 and
processes around invoices currently under review
Data only based on value of COVID-related government grant
Data only
schemes distributed to WL businesses
98.75%

CCS
CCS

40 To note impact made on business due to COVID19 is not yet clear
CCS

Data only

N/A (0%
18/19)
N/A (9.4%
18/19)
N/A (18%
18/19)

Contextual as not all Council control. Reducing vacancy rates will
0% be challenging in light of economic impact of COVID, as such
targets involve keeping vacancy levels at 2018/19 levels.

NEW: Vacancy levels - Vacant units in Ormskirk

As above

Data only

NEW: Vacancy levels - Vacant units in
Skelmersdale

As above

Data only

ER09 No businesses added vlaue to via support i.e
property searches, skills and employment

To what extent do we provide help/guidance/support to new or
established businesses?

Data only

N/A

50%

41.39%

51%

500

541.32

500

8

7

8

Contractual target

10

9

10

Contractual target

N/A

63,547

5,500

Significantly lower target due to uncertainty about mass
participation events being held.

N/A

49%

Data only

Data only since reliant on perception of services from varying
response group and not a measure of service performance.

0.10%

0.03%

0.10%

9% As above

GDS
GDS

18% As above

GDS

Data only Target N/A since customer driven demand

CCS

Priority: Become a Greener West Lancashire
To minimise waste disposal and improve recycling
services to meet national targets
To minimise waste disposal and improve recycling
services to meet national targets
To safeguard the natural landscape and maintain
our green environment
To safeguard the natural landscape and maintain
our green environment
To safeguard the natural landscape and maintain
our green environment

NI192 % of kerbside household wast sent for reuse,
How is the Council improving its recyling performance?
recyling and composting

A

To safeguard the natural landscape and maintain
our green environment

CIT07 - % residents satisfied with parks and open
spaces

A

Council housing stock to meet high standards of
HS14 % non Decent Homes
efficiency - insulation, design, technology

Q
Q
Q
Q
Q

NI191 kerbside residual wast per household (kg)

How is the Council improving its recycling performance?

To what extent does the council care for the presentation of the
borough/green environment
To what extent does the council care for the presentation of the
ES02 - grass cust sheltered
borough/green environment
To what extent does the council promote diverse leisure use of
WL17: No. attending parks and countryside events/ac
green spaces?
ES01 - grass cuts highway

How well do we promote leisure uses in our green spaces?
To what extent is our housing stock efficient?

Incremental increase .

ES
ES
ES
ES
WLS
CCS
HRS

Priority: Be a financially sustainable Council by 2023
Frequency
Q

Want
To continue to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of service provision

Measure
WL132 sickness absence

Q

To continue to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of service provision

R3 NNDR collected

Q

To continue to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of service provision

TS11 % of rent loss through dwellings being vacant

To continue to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of service provision
To continue to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of service provision

Ts1a % rent collected

Q
Q

Q

A

Page 533

A
Q

R1 Ctax collected

To continue to improve the efficiency and
effectiveness of service provision

NEW:% rent loss through empty commercial
properties available to rent

To provide value for money services

NEW:Annual External auditors confirm proper
arrangements are in place for effective use of
resources (value for money)

NEW: External auditors issue an unqualified opinion
To be confident, capable and financially sustainable on financial statements (that they meet regulatory
requirements)
To continue to improve the efficiency and
WL130 No. Service Now Customer Accounts
effectiveness of service provision

Why is this measured?
What resource do we have to deliver our priorities?
To what extent do our services provide value for money?

Target
2020/21
8.08

10.46

Manage collection due
How effectively are we managing the services behind the income 97.20%
streams?
Minimise empty dwellings
How effectively are we managing the services behind the income 0.99%
streams?
How effectively are we managing the services behind the income
100.04%
streams?
How effectively are we managing the services behind the income
97.10%
streams?

Manage empty commercial property units. How effectively are we
managing the services behind the income streams? How effective N/A
are we at supporting local business to grow?

Proposed
target
2021/22

Outturn
2019/20

8.08

Comment
Target of 8.08 has previously been difficult to achieve.
Performance directly impacted due to COVID. The service will
transition back in house from 1 April 2021 and then be reviewed.
Therefore a first year 'monitoring period' target is being applied
whilst the overall performance of the service is understood with a
view to service improvement.
Given the difficulties this year and the impact of Covid on
performance we should continue to aim for the same targets that we
set last year for the new financial year

98.02%

97.20%

0.87%

0.99%

101.74%

100.04%

As above

96.29%

97.10%

As above

10%

The commercial portfolio provide revenues but also nurtures and
support businesses to establish and grow, providing goods and
services to the local residents and employment for the Borough. A
target of 10% meets the revenue requirement whilst achieving the
opportunity for a healthy amount of expansion and contraction of
the business community. If the estate had 0% loss (i.e no 'churn'
)there would be no opportunity for new businesses to set up and
would indicate no expansion or responsive growth.

9%

How confident are we that we are managing the services to
provide value for money?

Yes

Yes

Yes

How confident are we that we are managing the overall and
service budgets?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Efficiency. To what extent are we promoting/encouraging new
technology?

Data only

24,734

Data only

Service
CCS

CCS
HRS
HRS
CCS

FPCPS

FPCPS
FPCPS
CCS

Priority: A clean safe environment with affordable homes to buy or rent for everyone in West Lancashire
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q

To provide a cleaner physical environment to
enhance the Borough
To provide a cleaner physical environment to
enhance the Borough
To provide a cleaner physical environment to
enhance the Borough
To provide a cleaner physical environment to
enhance the Borough
To provide a cleaner physical environment to
enhance the Borough
To provide a cleaner physical environment to
enhance the Borough

ES04: % locations inspected falling into categories
A/B - Litter (cumulative)
ES06% locations inspected falling into categories
A/B - Dog Fouling (cumulative)
ES08 % locations inspected falling into categories
A/B - grounds maintenance (includes grass and
shrubbery) (cumulative)
ES011 % locations inspected falling into categories
C/D - Detritus
ES07 % locations inspected falling into categories
C/D - Overflowing Litter Bins
NEW: ES19a-b % successful planned bin
collections (grey, brown, blue, green to be reported
separately)

What do you see? How does the Council ensure the cleanliness
of the borough?

90%

99.15%

As above

90%

100%

95.00% As above

As above

85%

92.53%

90.00% As above

As above

10%

4.16%

7.00% As above

As above

10.00%

10.53%

As above

N/A

N/A

95.00% Increase in target following previous performance

10.00%

West Lancashire to be safe for all citizens

HS27 % of properties with a valid Landlord Gas
Safety Record (homes and buildings)

To what extent does the council ensure tenants' safety?

100%

100%

100%

Q

West Lancashire to be safe for all citizens

HS28 % of properties with a valid Electrical
Installation Condition Report (homes and buildings)

As above

100%

97.60%

100%

Q

West Lancashire to be safe for all citizens

HS29 % non-domestic that require an asbestos
management survey/re-inspection

As above

100%

100%

100%

As above

100%

100%

100%

Q

West Lancashire to be safe for all citizens

Q

West Lancashire to be safe for all citizens

A

West Lancashire to be safe for all citizens

HS30 % of non-domestic properties with fire risk
assessment in place

ES
ES
ES

Revision to similar PIs to provide clearer picture of collection
96%
performance (rather than numbers)

Q

ES
ES

ES

HRS

HRS

HRS

HS31 % of properties covered by water hygiene risk As above
assessment (homes and buildings)
CIT01 - % residents feel WL is a safe & secure
Improve feeling of safety and security. To what extent does the
place to live
council ensure residents'/stakeholders safety?

HRS
100%

100%

100%

N/A

68%

Data only

HRS
Data only since reliant on perception of services from varying
response group and not a measure of service performance.

CCS

…(continued) Priority: A clean safe environment with affordable homes to buy or rent for everyone in West Lancashire
A

To provide a cleaner physical environment to
enhance the Borough

CIT02 % residents satisfied with the cleanliness of
the streets
CIT09 % residents who feel safe in the local area
after dark
CIT10 % residents who feel safe in the ir local area
during the day

Improve satisfaction with cleanliness of the streets

N/A

52%

Data only As above

Improve feeling of safety after dark. To what extent does the
council ensure residents'/stakeholders safety?

N/A

60%

Data only As above

As above

N/A

86%

Data only As above

A

West Lancashire to be safe for all citizens

A

West Lancashire to be safe for all citizens

A

A Local Plan that supports quality growth and
infrastructure in the Borough

NI159 supply of ready to develop housing sites

How do we make sure of appropriate growth and infrastructure
within the borough?

Data only

227%

A

To provide quality and genuinely affordable homes

NI155 Affordable homes delivered (gross)

How effective are we at providing affordable / good quality
homes?

Data only

210

A

To provide quality and genuinely affordable homes

How effective are we at providing affordable / good quality
homes?

Data only

622

Q

To provide quality and genuinely affordable homes

How effective are we at providing affordable / good quality
homes?

N/A

NI154 net additional homes provided
NEW:No. new homes completed during the year
through Tawd Valley Developments for affordable
housing

N/A

CCS
CCS

Use of 120% as an ongoing target will help to ensure Council plans
for a reasonable, best practice buffer of housing supply in case
delivery of housing should drop unexpectedly (e.g. because of
recession) or the need should change (upwards).
Based upon meeting half of identified average annual need for AH
60 in West Lancashire in 2018 Affordable Housing Needs
Assessment.
Housing Requirement identified in adopted West Lancashire Local
335
Plan

CCS

120%

44

All 71 builds in phase 1 currently underway are affordable housing.
Of these, 44 homes are due to complete during 2021/22.

GDS

GDS
GDS
CCS

Priority: Everyone to be happy, healthy, safe and resilient

Page 534

Data only

93% (18/19)

Data only

Our People Survey. There has been significant organisational
change since the last survey was undertaken, therefore this will be
used as baseline for future target setting.

Data only

78% (18/19)

Data only

Our People Survey

To what extent are our sports/leisure facilities meeting the needs
of WL?

N/A

27%

Data only

Data only since reliant on perception of services from varying
response group and not a measure of service performance.

To protect, invest and continue to develop our green
NEW:No Green Flag awards
leisure spaces

How successful is the Council in taking care of its green leisure
spaces

Data only

2

2

Q

To design services that help people stay healthy and
B1 average processing of CTS/HB benefits
independent

To what extent does the Council directly help independence and
life and financial stability?

12

7.73

Service performance continues to be directly impacted due to
COVID. The service is due to transition back in house from 1 April
2021. The processes will be reviewed during the year and therefore
12
a first year 'monitoring period' target is being applied whilst the
overall performance of the service is understood with a view to
service improvement.

Q

To design services that help people stay healthy and NEW: No. new participants engaged to enhance
employability, confidence, skills and qualifications
independent

How successful is the Council at promoting healthy lifestyles and
opportunities for independence?

N/A

N/A

40

Q

To design services that help people stay healthy and
NEW: No. new clients attending vocational training
independent

To what extent does the Council directly help independence and
financial stability?

N/A

N/A

Q

To design services that help people stay healthy and NEW: No. new participants engaged in health &
independent
wellbeing programmes/interventions

N/A

N/A

Q

To invest in sports and leisure services and facilities NEW: No. visits to leisure facilities

N/A

N/A

Q

To design services that help people stay healthy and
NEW:No. tenants accessing money advice service
independent

How successful is the Council at promoting healthy lifestyles and
opportunities for independence?
To what extent are our sports/leisure facilities meeting the needs
of WL?
To what extent does the Council directly help independence and
financial stability?

N/A

N/A

Data only

Baseline data collection

Q

To design services that help people stay healthy and NEW: no. people provided with money advice to
help prevent homelessness (tenants & residents)
independent

As above

N/A

N/A

Data only

Baseline data collection

As above

N/A

N/A

Data only

Baseline data collection

How well does the Council engage work with partners in service
design and delivery

N/A

N/A

81

Baseline data collection

A

An engaged and motivated Council workforce

WL140 staff are committed to council aims and
objectives

A

An engaged and motivated Council workforce

WL141 staff think the council is a good organisation
As above
to work for

A

To invest in sports and leisure services and facilities

CIT06 % residents satisfied with sports/leisure
facilities

A

Q
Q

To design services that help people stay healthy and
independent
To design services that help people stay healthy and
independent

NEW: No. tenants supported with Food Poverty
advice
NEW: No. of partners working with Wellbeing and
Leisure Service

Through what mechanisms does the Council promote 'one
Council' ? How engaged is the Council workforce?

Target based on current programme delivery.

Based on referrals into the More Positive Together and Kickstart
schemes. Training can include work experience, volunteering,
coaching or certified schemes
Revision to previous similar PI. Target based on current programme
250
delivery.
Revision to previous similar PI. Target based on anticiapted gradual
573,800
recovery following lockdown

CCS
CCS
CCS
WLS

CCS
WLS

150

Service: CCS - Corporate and Customer Services ; GDS - Growth and Development Services ; HRS - Housing and Regulatory Service ; WLS - Wellbeing and Leisure Service ; ES - Environmental Services ; FCPS - Financial, Procurement and Commercial Property Service

WLS
WLS
WLS
HRS
HRS
HRS
WLS

MINUTE OF CABINET 9 MARCH 2021

APPENDIX B

87 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORTING
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Corporate Director
of Transformation and Resources, seeking approval for the Corporate Performance
Reporting plan for 2021/22.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That the suite of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and
targets in Appendix A are approved and adopted for reporting
alongside an associated Council Plan Corporate Delivery Plan
to evidence progress with the Council Plan.

B.

That the Corporate Director of Transformation and Resources,
in consultation with the Leader of the Council as Portfolio
Holder, be authorised to finalise and amend the suite
(Appendix A) having regard to agreed comments from
Executive Overview and Scrutiny Committee made on 25
March 2021, and to make necessary amendments to the suite
in year in response to any issues that may arise, for example
government policy or collection mechanisms.

C.

That the call-in procedure is not appropriate for this item as the
report will be submitted to the meeting of the Executive
Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 25 March 2021.

Page 535

Agenda Item 11
CABINET: 9 March 2021
EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE: 25 March 2021

Report of: Head of Finance, Procurement and Commercial Services
Relevant Portfolio Holder: Cllr J. Wilkie
Contact for further information: Peter Quick (Extn. 5203)
(peter.quick@westlancs.gov.uk)
SUBJECT:

HRA REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING

Wards affected: Borough wide
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To provide a summary of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Housing
capital programme positions for the 2020/21 financial year.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

2.1

That the 2020/21 HRA and Housing capital programme positions be noted.

2.2

That call in is not appropriate for this item as the report is being submitted to the
next meeting of the Executive Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 25 March
2021.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS
COMMITTEE

3.1

That the 2020/21 HRA and Housing capital programme positions be noted.

4.0

BACKGROUND

4.1

In February 2020, Council agreed the HRA revenue and capital budgets for the
2020/21 financial year. Subsequently in October 2020 Council noted the
favourable financial outturn position of the 2019/20 HRA and Capital Investment
Programme and approved a number of budget changes and allocations. Further
changes were approved at mid-year reporting.

4.2

From April 2020 the Government's new rents policy has been applied, which is a
return to annual increases of up to CPI + 1%. There is also a new regulatory
framework, which is anticipated, will be more robust.

TO

EXECUTIVE

Page 537

OVERVIEW

AND

SCRUTINY

5.0

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT – PROJECTED OUTTURN

5.1

A summary of the projected HRA revenue outturn against budget is set out in
Appendix 1 and shows that a favourable budget variance of £480,000 is expected
for 2020/2021, representing 1.9% of total turnover. This compares to the mid-year
forecast of £710,000 (2.8% of total turnover.) The main change since mid-year is
an increase in the forecast for responsive repairs and void revenue repairs, partly
offset by a reduction in the forecast for supplies & services. The HRA remains in a
healthy overall financial position.

5.2

The main variances that are expected at this time are due to the following:






There are a number of vacant posts pending recruitment and consequently a
favourable variance is anticipated on employee costs.
Responsive repairs and voids revenue repairs are expected to be over budget
due to further settlement of prior contract works costs. As both budgets are
demand led there are various factors that can influence outturn.
Planned revenue works are unlikely to be fully undertaken in year, and the
size of this budget has been reviewed during 2021/22 budget setting.
The remaining budget contingency is not expected to be used.
Dwelling rents are better than budget.

5.3

Consideration will be given to how the projected favourable budget variance of
£480,000 should be used at year-end.

6.0

CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME

6.1

A summary of the capital expenditure year to date position is shown in Appendix
2. Total expenditure to date is £2.966m which represents 39% of the total revised
budget. It is expected that the major part of the revised capital budget will be spent
in year.

6.2

In February 2019 delegated authority was given, in consultation with the Housing
and Landlord Services Portfolio Holder, to utilise one for one capital receipt
funding together with HRA borrowing to acquire new properties subject to there
being a satisfactory business case. At quarter 3, £0.328m of expenditure has been
incurred on purchase of 2 properties from the open market, plus work on bringing
up to the required standard the properties purchased in quarter four of 2019/20.
At mid-year this figure was reported as £0.363m but after further review some
expenditure was identified as being early TVDL works and moved to that line.
Open market purchases are initially part funded by HRA borrowing in addition to
the use of 141 receipts that needs to be utilised rather than paid back to
Government with interest. Given expected capital expenditure for the year it is
likely that the WLBC element can actually be funded from revenue contributions,
thus preserving existing HRA borrowing.

6.3

Expenditure to date in relation TVDL building homes for Council tenants at
affordable rents has been included in Appendix 2 in order to provide a fuller
picture of total HRA/housing capital expenditure commitments. Initial budgets for
these were approved in February 2020 with subsequent approval of one further
scheme. Funding is a mixture of 141 receipts, Homes England grants and HRA

Page 538

borrowing. At year end, total TVDL expenditure will be balanced against the
approved budgets to identify the remaining budget available in 2021/22.
7.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

7.1

Careful monitoring the budget position helps ensure that the HRA remains able to
deliver services and is financially sustainable in the medium term. This supports
the aim that local people should receive good quality homes for a fair and
appropriate rent.

8.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

The formal reporting of performance on the Housing Revenue Account is part of
the overall budgetary management and control framework that is designed to
minimise the financial risks facing the Council. This process is resource intensive
for both Members and Officers but ensures that a robust and achievable budget is
set.

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

9.1

The health and wellbeing implications arising from this report will be dependent on
the budget proposals put forward at the Council meeting. Details of any significant
implications will be provided at the Council meeting if required.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D(5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.
Equality Impact Assessment
The decision does not have any direct impact on members of the public, employees,
elected members and / or stakeholders. Therefore no Equality Impact Assessment is
required.
Appendices
Appendix 1 – HRA Revenue Projected Outturn
Appendix 2 – Housing Capital Year to Date Position
Appendix 3 - Minute of Landlord Services Cabinet Working Group 3 March 2021
Appendix 4 – Minute of Cabinet 9 March 2021

Page 539

Appendix 1 – HRA Revenue Projected Outturn

Budget Area
Employee Expenses
Void repairs and response
repairs
Other premises costs

Revised
Budget
£000
3,539
3,504
3,045

Transport costs

167

Budget contingency

260

Page 540

Supplies and Services
Support Services and internal
income (net)
Loan interest & Contribution
towards Repayment
Contributions to capital
Dwelling rents
Other external income
Total

Variance
£000

Comment

-100 Staffing vacancies will lead to a favourable budget variance
Both budgets are demand-led so final outturn depends upon various factors.
300
Primarily remaining works costs from previous contractors.
-250 Planned revenue works budget not expected to be fully used in 2020/21
0
-180 No current calls on remaining budget contingency
Cumulative effect from a number of budgets, each expected to outturn
modestly below budget, including contribution to bad debt provision.

1,231

-150

1,538

0

3,395

0

9,050

0 Contributions not used in year can be transferred into 2021/22

-22,820
-2,909
0

-100 Expected to be ahead of budget
0
-480 Represents 1.9% of the overall turnover

Appendix 2 – Housing Capital Year to Date Position
Revised
Mid-year
Budget
Spend
Scheme Description
£000's
£000's
Re-Roofing Works
2,090
1297
External Works
850
32
Heating System Upgrades
848
611
Electrical Upgrades
438
84
Kitchen Replacements
21
-37
Windows and Doors
545
0
Bathroom Replacements
16
42
Walls
120
0
Communal Fire Safety Works
271
32
Communal Areas
60
76
Improvements
Capital Investment
5259
2137
Programme
Carbon Neutral Dwellings
Professional Fees
Adaptations for Disabled
People
Contingency/Voids
Change in Standard for Smoke
Detection
Improvements to Binstores
Environmental Programme
Asset Management
Assessment
Lifts
Sheltered Housing Upgrades
Other Housing Schemes
Digital Initiatives
Purchase Service Charge
Software
Rounding
Total Capital Programme
Market Purchases to utilise
141
Purchases/work from TVD
Total Expenditure

250
600
300
400

511
81
181

300
192
65
50

Mid-year
Spend
%
62%
4%
72%
19%
-176%
0%
263%
0%
12%
127%
41%

0%
85%
27%
45%
0%

12
28

2%
18%
56%

70
155
2,382

14
827

0%
9%
35%

15

2

13%
0%

40
1
7,697

2,966
328

39%

1,314
4,608

Resources
Capital Receipts
147
1,254
HRA Borrowing/HE Grant
HRA/MRA Contribution
7,697
3,207
Total Resources
7,697
4,608
*HRA/MRA contributions not utilised in year can be transferred into 2021/22 along with
any further capital budget transferred into 2021/22 at year end.

Page 541

Page 542

APPENDIX 3
LANDLORD SERVICES COMMITTEE (CABINET WORKING GROUP)
3 MARCH 2021
28

HRA REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING
The Working Group considered the report of the Head of Housing and Regulatory
Services contained on pages 199 – 204 of the Book of Reports, which provided a
summary of the Housing Revenue Account and Housing Capital Programme
positions for the 2020/21 financial year.
The Group Accountant provided an overview of the report to include a favourable
budget variance and contingencies.
Agreed: That the 2020/21 HRA and Housing Capital Programme positions be noted.

Page 543

MINUTE OF CABINET 9 MARCH 2021
89

APPENDIX 4

HRA REVENUE AND CAPITAL MONITORING
Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Finance, Procurement and
Commercial Services, providing a summary of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
and Housing capital programme positions for the 2020/21 financial year.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That the 2020/21 HRA and Housing capital programme
positions be noted.

B.

That call in is not appropriate for this item as the report is being
submitted to the next meeting of the Executive Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on 25 March 2021.

Page 545

Agenda Item 12
CABINET: 9 MARCH 2021
EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW &
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: 25
MARCH 2021

Report of:

Corporate Director of Place and Community

Relevant Portfolio Holder: Councillor Ian Moran / Councillor David Evans
Contact for further information: Mr Peter Richards

SUBJECT: ORMSKIRK TOWN CENTRE STRATEGY ACTION PLAN UPDATE
2021-2026 AND THE HERITAGE ACTION ZONE PROGRAMME

Wards affected: Ormskirk Ward(s)
1.0

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1

To outline and inform members regarding the details of the Action Plan for
2021 - 2026 in relation to Ormskirk Town Centre and to update Cabinet on
the progress of the Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) project and how this project
will assist with the recovery and regeneration efforts for the town centre.

2.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO CABINET

2.1

That the Ormskirk Town Centre Strategy Action Plan 2021-2026 be
considered and approved by Cabinet.

2.2

That the ongoing work on regeneration plans for Ormskirk Town Centre as
proposed in the Heritage Action Zone (HAZ), that is included within the Town
Centre Strategy Action Plan, be noted.

3.0

RECOMMENDATIONS TO EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

3.1

That the agreed comments of the committee on the Ormskirk Town Centre
Strategy Action Plan 2021-2026 be considered by the Corporate Director of
Place and Community, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Planning,
before taking the Action Plan forward.

Page 547

4.0

ORMSKIRK TOWN CENTRE ACTION PLAN 2021 - 2026

4.1

The Ormskirk Town Centre Strategy Action Plan 2021-2026 follows the
adoption of the Ormskirk Town Centre Strategy 2015-2020 in September
2015, and as agreed by Cabinet, an Ormskirk Town Centre Management
Group was established.

4.2

In 2020 Ormskirk town centre was successfully awarded High Street Heritage
Action Zone funding by Historic England to help deliver improvements to the
high street utilising Ormskirk's heritage. This funding (£755,000) was
supported by match funding provided by WLBC and Lancashire County
Council (£1.9m) which was allocated to deliver improvements within Ormskirk
town centre. This updated action plan seeks to link with and build upon the
HAZ programme. It is hoped this new vision and proposed significant level of
investment can act as a crucial intervention and help deliver confidence that
Ormskirk town centre can move beyond the COVID 19 pandemic and prosper
in the medium to long term.

4.3

Seven key action areas have been included within the updated action plan
which will work in combination to continue to progress improvements within
Ormskirk town centre. These are Brand, Marketing and Town Centre
Management, Heritage & Culture, Ormskirk Market, town centre car parks,
transport and access, night time economy and monitoring and review.

4.4

Branding for Ormskirk town centre will be developed to build a sense of
identity for the town centre. This could be achieved by building upon the
heritage of the town and communicating via a robust marketing strategy
communicated both locally and further afield.

4.5

Liaising with the Town Centre Management Group and the newly formed
Cultural Consortium (which includes Ormskirk Community Partnership,
Positive Placemakers Community Interest Company, Chapel Gallery, Edge
Hill University and Ormskirk and District Family History Society) a series of
cultural events are to be delivered both within the town centre and online.
These events are to be designed to encourage engagement with all and raise
the profile of Ormskirk to help increase footfall.

4.6

To help fund town centre improvements funding streams will continue to be
identified to ensure any schemes are financially viable. Potential schemes to
be prepared to ensure shovel ready projects can be used when grant funding
becomes available.

4.7

A full appraisal of the Ormskirk Town Centre Conservation Area will be
undertaken to provide information on physical assets and their historical
significance. All projects undertaken will be, where applicable, discussed with
Historic England and advice will be sought to ensure that Ormskirk's heritage
is safeguarded and, where possible, enhanced.

Page 548

4.8

As part of the HAZ a number of improvements to the public realm will be
delivered over the four year programme to 2024. These include the Ormskirk
Eastern Gateway, Moor Street and Wheatsheaf Walk. These projects aim to
improve the appearance of this important gateway, enhance accessibility in to
the town centre and provide public areas which can be used to increase dwell
time in the town centre (i.e. the amount of time they spend in the town centre).

4.9

As part of the HAZ a programme of events will take place to deliver events
which celebrate Ormskirk's heritage. These will be facilitated in partnership
with the Cultural Consortia and partners such as the Chapel Gallery and
community groups.

4.10 The appearance and stall layout of Ormskirk Market will continue to be
improved to ensure the market operates alongside businesses and increase
visitors to the town centre. New traders will be encouraged to operate at
Ormskirk Market, thus increasing stall numbers and providing a wider range of
commodities which will enhance the sustainability of the market. The
feasibility of artisan and specialist markets will also be explored to either
enhance the offer on regular market days or to operate on additional days to
increase footfall levels in the town centre.
4.11 The overall use of the land area of the car parks will be investigated to
ascertain whether further other services can be installed. Examples of such
services could be parcel collection lockers or valeting, potentially raising
revenue for the Council and helping our businesses adapt to changing
consumer behaviour of shopping online.
4.14 The installation of additional electronic vehicle charging points within town
centre Council car parks will also be enabled, helping to support the Council's
commitment to reducing climate change and improving air quality. This will
build upon the funding secured to install twelve electronic vehicle charging
points located within three town centre car parks (four charging points in each)
to be installed by April 2021.
4.15 The installation of additional contactless methods for purchasing car parking
tickets to be investigated. This may include payment via smart phone
application.
4.16 The Ormskirk Eastern Gateway project will enhance transport and access
which will link the railway station to the bus station at the eastern approach to
the town centre. The project will improve the link to St Helens Road and the
town centre. Cycle routes will be made safer and physically improved to help
link the railway station to the bus station and Edge Hill University. This
scheme should deliver significant physical and visual improvements helping to
draw people into the town centre using sustainable transport.
4.17 Projects to enhance the public realm to assist the further development of the
night time economy will include a landscaping scheme at Wheatsheaf Walk
and lighting enhancements in Church Street.

Page 549

4.18 Continued collation of footfall and property vacancy data will help to monitor
and review actions taken to improve the town centre. Liaison and consultation
with town centre businesses will also help to ensure that any planned projects
will help to make businesses more resilient, create a vibrant place and attract
further investment within the town centre environment.

5.0

NEXT STEPS

5.1

It is evident that Ormskirk town centre is in an extremely challenging period
generally and that the COVID-19 pandemic has had, and will continue to have
an impact upon it. However, the town centre has fared better than many other
town centres during the pandemic and there are many reasons to be
optimistic for Ormskirk town centre and, in the short to medium term, Ormskirk
is well positioned as a retail/leisure destination in the post COVID-19 world.

5.2

With regards to safe transport access Ormskirk is also well positioned with
new cycle routes currently in development. Officers at both Lancashire County
Council and West Lancashire Borough Council have been working on a
number of proposals to improve cycle infrastructure in Ormskirk, with the
Ormskirk Eastern Gateway proposals being a key part of this.

5.3

Given officers at Lancashire and West Lancashire have already been working
collaboratively on a number of transport and public realm related schemes to
deliver much needed improvements, supported by a successful Heritage
Action Zone bid and effective leadership from Town Centre Management
Group, Ormskirk Town Centre is in a strong position to survive in the short
term and ultimately grow and prosper in the medium to long term.

5.4

As the recovery phase continues, it will be extremely important to use all
available means to understand the new baseline position, sustain it and grow
as appropriate. Officers will also continue to monitor and apply for all relevant
funding streams that could assist with recovery efforts and deliver our
aspirations for the future.

5.5

Officers will bring an update on progress with the Town Centre Strategy
Action Plan 2021-2026 to Cabinet each year, to enable any necessary
modifications to the Action Plan to be considered.

6.0

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS/COMMUNITY STRATEGY

6.1

There are no significant sustainability impacts associated with this particular
report and, in particular, no significant impact on crime and disorder. The
report has no significant links with the Sustainable Community Strategy.
However, by implementing the Ormskirk Town Centre Strategy and
encouraging businesses to be engaged in its delivery, there are additional
benefits that may include increased footfall into the town centre and the
economic impacts this would in turn generate.

Page 550

7.0

FINANCIAL AND RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

7.1

There are financial and resource implications arising from this report in
respect of the cost of delivering proposals submitted as part of the Council's
Heritage Action Zone programme, and Officer resources to help deliver those
programmes. However, funding identified as match to support the Heritage
Action Zone bid has already been allocated for individual projects from WLBC
and LCC and the additional funding provided from the HAZ funding will help
improve the quality and amount of proposals being brought forward.

7.2

Officers will continue to monitor all funding streams made available by the
Government and others to investigate if they are appropriate and could be
utilised to help with recovery efforts and to generally improve Ormskirk town
centre.

8.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

8.1

The actions referred to in this report are covered by the scheme of delegation
to officers and any necessary changes have been made in the relevant
operational risk registers.

8.2

There is the risk that projects which require materials that need to be imported
from outside of the United Kingdom may need additional financial resources
following United Kingdom's exit from the European Union. Goods may be
more expensive due to being subject to import taxes/levies and, as a result,
increase the costs of projects.

8.3

There may be a need to use materials sourced from within the United
Kingdom which would negate the risk of leaving the European Union.

8.4

The continued COVID-19 pandemic will increase labour costs due to revised
working practices including social distancing. This will lead to projects also
potentially taking longer to complete on site to ensure a safe working
environment for project staff and the public and businesses in the town centre.

8.5

The risks associated with the COVID-19 pandemic will not have been included
in previous financial forecasting of projects as this was an unforeseen event.
The pandemic will have a substantial impact upon contractors' costs and
increase timescales which will need to be considered to ensure minimal
disruption to town centre businesses.

8.6

To minimise the associated financial risks of projects being over the forecast,
Council Officers will investigate with partners the likelihood of any increased
financial assistance.

9.0

HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS

Page 551

9.1

The proposals contained within this report should help support the
development of the town centre helping to increase access for all to essential
services and leisure facilities. The proposals will also help support active
lifestyles and positive mental health.

Background Documents
There are no background documents (as defined in Section 100D (5) of the Local
Government Act 1972) to this Report.

Equality Impact Assessment
There is a direct impact on members of the public, employees, elected members and
/ or stakeholders, therefore an Equality Impact Assessment is required. A formal
equality impact assessment is attached as an Appendix to this report, the results of
which have been taken into account in the Recommendations contained within this
report

Appendices
Appendix A – Review of Ormskirk Town Centre Strategy Action Plan 2021-2026
Appendix B – Equality Impact Assessment
Appendix C - Minute of Cabinet 9 March 2021

Page 552

Appendix A Review of Action Plan 2021-2026

Page 553

Key Action
Area

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

Estimated Timescale

Brand,
Marketing
and Town
Centre
Management

The Ormskirk Town Centre Management
Group will continue to provide leadership
and engage with different town centre
stakeholders. Further engagement with
businesses is required to assist with the
economic recovery and growth. In
particular it will be important to work with
Historic England to fully capitalise on the
Ormskirk Heritage Action Zone.

Town Centre Management
Group

Ongoing

As part of Ormskirk's Heritage Action Zone
firmly establish a cultural consortia made
up of cultural, arts and community
organisations to encourage residents and
visitors to enjoy Ormskirk's unique high
street.

Ormskirk Cultural Consortia

2021

Develop a new marketing strategy for
Ormskirk to help ensure Ormskirk is well
positioned for changing consumer/visitor
behaviour. In particular investigate
opportunities for marketing Ormskirk to
the neighbouring conurbations of
Merseyside, Greater Manchester.
Continued marketing of Ormskirk to
people in relatively close proximity to the

WLBC

2021-2022

Key Action
Area

Page 554

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

Estimated Timescale

town centre via shop local communication.
Continue to have, and develop, the
Ormskirk ambassadors team as key onstreet communicators providing assistance
to visitors to the town centre.

WLBC/Community
Ambassadors

2021-2022

Continue to monitor all funding streams
that could be used to assist with improving
Ormskirk town centre, including
investigating cultural grants which could
be utilised by members of the cultural
consortia as well as any funding to help
deliver shelf-ready projects.

WLBC

Ongoing

Engagement with wider attractions and
stakeholders to support the visitor
economy. This will include supporting and
engaging with Lancashire's bid for County
of Culture in 2025.

WLBC/Town Centre
Management Group

2021-2025

To assist with business resilience it will be
important to support businesses use of
technology such as click and collect/online
ordering and shared town centre websites.

WLBC/TCMG/Contractor

Ongoing

Development of a town centre gift card for
Ormskirk to encourage increased spend

Key Action
Area

Page 555
Heritage &
Culture
(Buildings
and Place)

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

Estimated Timescale

within the town centre. This would build
upon the loyalty base already in place and
help the resilience of town centre
businesses.

WLBC/TCMG

2022

Utilising heritage projects as part of HAZ
build upon Ormskirk's heritage, including
the Warhorse and Gingerbread links. This
would help to ensure Ormskirk remains an
attraction and is promoted by both Visit
Liverpool and Lancashire.

WLBC/TCMG

2021-2023

Continue to work with partners to ensure
a range of appropriate events takes place
to encourage visitors to the town centre as
well as raising the profile of the town.

WLBC/TCMG

2022-2026

Undertake an update of the Ormskirk
Town Centre Conservation Area Appraisal.

WLBC

2021

Work with Historic England to ensure that
improvements to the town centre are
delivered in a way that enhances the
historic qualities of Ormskirk.

WLBC/LCC

2021-2023

Deliver a series of physical improvements

WLBC/LCC/OTCMG/Historic

Key Action
Area

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

to improve the public realm considered as
part of the HAZ programme including:

England

Page 556

A) Public realm improvement scheme
within Wheatsheaf Walk
B) Establish pop up shops in vacant
units
C) Alleyways and ginnels enhancement
scheme
D) Develop proposals to improve
Ormskirk's Eastern Gateway including
improving Moor Street, redeveloping
Ormskirk Bus station and better linking
the Chapel Gallery and St Helens Road
to the town centre.
E) The delivery of a lighting scheme
along Church Street to link the historic
clock tower and Parish Church.

Further establish arts and culture within
Ormskirk by delivering:
A) Programme of events to extend activity
from the Chapel Gallery to the town centre
including a grant programme.
B) Community engagement and delivering
a heritage programme.
C) A virtual museum and gallery to help
bring arts and culture to residents and to
be available to a range of groups.

Estimated Timescale

2021
2021
2022

2021-23

2022

WLBC/Cultural Consortia/TCMG

2022

2021-2023
2022

Key Action
Area

Page 557
Ormskirk
Market

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

Estimated Timescale

Continue to monitor and asses if any
suitable opportunities exist to purchase
land or property in Ormskirk, if a positive
business case can be made, including
exploring all opportunities to work with
OPE, Homes England and Historic England
to facilitate any further improvements in
the town centre.

WLBC

2021-2026

Develop shelf-ready proposals to further
improve areas of Ormskirk town centre to
take advantage of funding opportunities as
soon as they become available.

WLBC/LCC

2021-2023

Work with developers and landowners to
bring forward development sites and
ensure that design is of the highest quality
which respects, and where possible,
enhancing the historic character of
Ormskirk Town Centre.

WLBC

Ongoing

Continue to work on the layout of the
stalls in the market which will work

WLBC WLBC/Night-time
economy businesses

Key Action
Area

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

Estimated Timescale

Page 558

effectively for both the market traders and
town centre businesses. Continue to
ensure that town centre businesses can
function effectively on market days and
can be seen.

2021-2022

Look to enhance the range of commodities
available for sale at Ormskirk Market to
ensure increased footfall levels.

2021-2022

Investigate opportunities to encourage
new traders to attend the market,
potentially through short-term reduced
start-up costs to encourage new traders to
become permanent licensed traders.

2022

Encourage all traders to enhance the
appearance of their stall/s. This may
include a small investment in stalls
sheeting and sidewalls where traders do
not use gazebos.

2022

Investigate if an additional niche, specialist
market could help to support and enhance
the Saturday Market.
Investigate the opportunity to hold night
markets within the town centre to help to
support the night-time economy and
increase footfall during the early evening.

2022

WLBC/Contractor

2021-2022

Key Action
Area

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

Investigate the opportunity to hold Artisan
Markets on Sundays. Such markets to be
held monthly and procured by WLBC
contracting, raising revenue for WLBC.

Car Parks

2021-2022

Page 559

In the short term, it is important to ensure
that car parks re-open safely to support
town centre recovery efforts and
particularly as car travel is seen as
relatively safe whilst current advice is to
avoid public transport were possible.

WLBC

In the medium term, it will be important to
ensure that our car park provision is
considered as part of the wider transport
network within Ormskirk and that
provision is included within our car parks
for EVR points. Monitor any opportunities
for funding to help provide additional EVR
points.

WLBC

In the medium term, need to investigate
the cost of implementing contactless
payment systems for the sale of parking
tickets in the car parks. This includes
payment via smart mobile phone
applications to provide a further method
of contactless payment.

WLBC/Contractor

In the long term, it will be important to

Estimated Timescale

2021

2022

2022-2023

Key Action
Area

Page 560
Transport
and Access

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

Estimated Timescale

ensure car park provision reflects changing WLBC
behaviour. It may be appropriate that click
and collect bays are fitted in Council car
parks, for example, or car parking spaces
are given over for other temporary uses
such as car washes, automobile repair for
example helping to generate an income for
the Council.

Ongoing

Town centre car parks are currently in a
good condition, however, it will be
important to monitor their condition and
implement a rolling period of
refurbishments as required.

WLBC

Ongoing

In the short term, as part of the COVID-19
response, work with Lancashire County
Council to consider temporary widening of
some key footways to assist with safe
access into and out of the town centre as
well as other areas.

WLBC/LCC

2021

Consider temporary measure to ensure
safe social distancing in the town centre if
required. Close monitoring of the
situation and, if appropriate, interventions
to be implemented where practical.
In the medium term, introduce cycle and

2021

Key Action
Area

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

pedestrian improvements as part of the
HAZ programme/Ormskirk Movement
strategy.

Estimated Timescale
2022

Establish a cycle hub within the town
centre to visibly raise the profile of cycling
within Ormskirk.

2022

In the long term, consider all options to
support the shift to renewable and
sustainable forms of transport.

Ongoing

Page 561

As part of Ormskirk Eastern Gateway
proposals are being developed to:

LCC/WLBC

A) Improve Ormskirk Bus station to
provide modern fit for purpose
facilities better linking the bus
station/train station and town
centre together.

2022

B) As part of these proposals we will
be providing a new cycleway going
through the bus station to the
town centre as well as onto a
segregated cycle lane on St Helens
Road linking the train station to
Edge Hill University.

2021/2022

C) Improvements will also see the

2022

Key Action
Area

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

Estimated Timescale

Continue to support proposals to improve
rail services to Ormskirk including those on
the Ormskirk to Preston line.

WLBC

2021-2026

Through the development of wider
cycling/pedestrian links access should be
improved for pedestrians and cyclists
visiting Ormskirk.

LCC/WLBC

2023

Delivery of new lighting schemes within
Wheatsheaf Walk and Church Street to
help provide an attractive night time
environment and enhance footfall.

WLBC

2021/2022

Town Centre environment to become
more attractive to allowing outdoor
seating at restaurants, bars, coffee shops
in the early evening.

WLBC/LCC

2021

TCMG

2021

traffic signalling in Ormskirk town
centre improved to reduce
congestion.

Page 562

Night
Build upon the success of existing events
Time/Evening such as Night Markets to help support the
Economy
evening economy. A number of events by

Key Action
Area

Action Point 2021-2026

Key Delivery Partner

Estimated Timescale

Continue to monitor town centre vacancy
rates to understand how the town centre
is performing.

WLBC

2021-2026

Continue to monitor footfall data to
compare how Ormskirk has performed
against historical data as well as against
different sizes of towns and the regional
and national averages.

WLBC

2021-2026

Introduce more sophisticated technology
to understand the number of repeat
visitors and how long people spend in the
town centre.

WLBC

2021

WLBC

2021

partners will be considered.

Page 563

Monitor and
review

Continue to liaise with business owners in
the town centre to understand how they
are performing, the issues they are
experiencing and help to provide
solutions.

APPENDIX B

Equality Impact Assessment Form
Directorate: Place & Community
Service: Growth & Development
Completed by: Ian Goodall
Date: 26.01.2021
Subject Title: Ormskirk Town Centre Strategy Action Plan Update 2021-2026
1. DESCRIPTION
Is a policy or strategy being produced or
revised:
Is a service being designed, redesigned or
cutback:
Is a commissioning plan or contract
specification being developed:
Is a budget being set or funding allocated:

Yes

Is a programme or project being planned:
Are recommendations being presented to
senior managers and/or Councillors:
Does the activity contribute to meeting our
duties under the Equality Act 2010 and Public
Sector Equality Duty (Eliminating unlawful

Yes

No
No
Yes

Yes

Yes

discrimination/harassment, advancing equality of
opportunity, fostering good relations):

Details of the matter under consideration:

To outline and inform members
regarding the details of the Action Plan
for 2021 - 2026 in relation to Ormskirk
Town Centre. To update Cabinet on the
progress of the Heritage Action Zone
(HAZ) project and how this project will
assist with the recovery and
regeneration efforts for the town centre.

If you answered Yes to any of the above go straight to Section 3
If you answered No to all the above please complete Section 2

2. RELEVANCE
Does the work being carried out impact on
service users, staff or Councillors
(stakeholders):
If Yes, provide details of how this impacts on
service users, staff or Councillors
(stakeholders):

-

-

If you answered Yes go to Section 3

If you answered No to both Sections 1and 2
provide details of why there is no impact on
these three groups:
You do not need to complete the rest of this form.

Page 565

-

3. EVIDENCE COLLECTION
Who does the work being carried out impact on,
i.e. who is/are the stakeholder(s)?

All those who use Ormskirk town centre,
including the public who visit the town
centre and residents of the town centre
and businesses who operate there.

If the work being carried out relates to a
universal service, who needs or uses it most?
(Is there any particular group affected more
than others)?

The Town Centre Strategy Action Plan is
a cross cutting document which seeks to
improve conditions for retailers/residents
and visitors of Ormskirk. The Town
Centre Strategy Action Plan outlines the
projects which will deliver improvements,
detailing the outcomes.

Which of the protected characteristics are most
relevant to the work being carried out?
Age
Gender
Disability
Race and Culture
Sexual Orientation
Religion or Belief
Gender Reassignment
Marriage and Civil Partnership
Pregnancy and Maternity

Yes
No
Yes
No
No
No
No
No
No

4. DATA ANALYSIS
In relation to the work being carried out, and the
service/function in question, who is actually or
currently using the service and why?
What will the impact of the work being carried
out be on usage/the stakeholders?

What are people’s views about the services?
Are some customers more satisfied than others,
and if so what are the reasons? Can these be
affected by the proposals?
What sources of data including consultation
results have you used to analyse the impact of
the work being carried out on
users/stakeholders with protected
characteristics?

Page 566

N/A
The actions contained within the Town
Centre Strategy Action Plan and HAZ
programme seek to improve the
appearance and vitality of Ormskirk town
centre helping to improve the town
centre for all stakeholders.

N/A

Public consultation has taken place to
gain the views of people regarding the
potential Wheatsheaf Walk project.
An online public consultation is currently
taking place to gain views regarding the
Ormskirk Eastern Gateway Scheme.

If any further data/consultation is needed and is
to be gathered, please specify:

N/A

5. IMPACT OF DECISIONS
In what way will the changes impact on people
with particular protected characteristics (either
positively or negatively or in terms of
disproportionate impact)?

The implementation of the Town Centre
Strategy Action Plan and HAZ
programme should help to improve the
town centre, encouraging more people to
visit helping to enhance shopping
conditions for retailers. The proposals
should have a positive impact upon all.

6. CONSIDERING THE IMPACT
If there is a negative impact what action can be
taken to mitigate it? (If it is not possible or
desirable to take actions to reduce the impact,
explain why this is the case (e.g. legislative or
financial drivers etc.).

The development of actions contained
within the Town Centre Strategy Action
Plan and HAZ programme should have a
positive impact upon all stakeholders.

What actions do you plan to take to address
any other issues above?

Timetable for proposed public ream work
will be considered to ensure it has the
least negative impact upon town centre
businesses.
If no actions are planned state no actions

7. MONITORING AND REVIEWING
When will this assessment be reviewed and
who will review it?

Page 567

A review of the Town Centre Strategy
Action Plan and HAZ programme will
take place on an annual basis and be
reported back to members. However,
Council Officers and partners are
constantly reviewing all available data to
assess the vitality of the Town Centre
Strategy Action Plan and HAZ
programme and monitor the effects of
interventions.

MINUTE OF CABINET 9 MARCH 2021
93

APPENDIX

ORMSKIRK TOWN CENTRE STRATEGY ACTION PLAN UPDATE 2021-2026
AND THE HERITAGE ACTION ZONE PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the report of the Corporate Director of Place and
Community, to outline and inform members regarding the details of the Action Plan
for 2021 - 2026 in relation to Ormskirk Town Centre and to update Cabinet on the
progress of the Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) project and how this project will assist
with the recovery and regeneration efforts for the town centre.
In reaching the decision below, Cabinet considered the details as set out in the
report before it and the reasons contained therein.
RESOLVED:

A.

That the Ormskirk Town Centre Strategy Action Plan 20212026 be approved.

B.

That the ongoing work on regeneration plans for Ormskirk
Town Centre as proposed in the Heritage Action Zone (HAZ),
that is included within the Town Centre Strategy Action Plan,
be noted.

Page 569

Agenda Item 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 571

